Herbert Hoover

Hulda Minthorn
Hoover, the mother of
the future President,
was born May 4, 1848,
in Norwich Township,-
Canada. In 1859 she
moved with her parents
to West Branch. She
taught school before
her marriage to Jesse
Hoover on March 12,
1870.

Service And ldeals

No man has been more honored upon
assuming the Presidency, and few have
been more reviled upon leaving office
than Herbert Hoover. Now, almost 50
years later, historians are re-examining
this complex and misunderstood man.

Hoover grew up in an age that believed
inthe ideal of rugged individualism and the
self-made man. His career exemplified
that ideal: raised in the Quaker tradition
of humanity and generosity, and orphaned
while young, his expertise as a mining

Jesse Hooverwasborn  Herbert was the sec-
September 2, 1846, in ond. This photograph,
Stillwater, Ohio. Eight taken in 1881, shows
years later his family Mary—the youngest—
migrated to West Herbert, and Theodore.
Branch. He became a

successful blacksmith

with his own shop, then

opened a farm machin-

ery business. Jesse

and Hulda Hoover had

three children, of whom

engineer made him a millionaire by the
age of 40. As President, the Great Depres-
sion forced his ideals into conflict: individ-
alism demanded that local institutions
provide relief for the needy, yet humani-
tarianism forced the Federal government
to help. Consequently, Hoover did more
than any previous President to relieve the
distress caused by economic collapse and
paved the way for the anti-depression
measures of the New Deal.

National Historic Site
lowa

Information for
the visitor and
researcher

National Park Service
U.S. Department of the Interior

Herbert Hoover National Historic Site is
located in West Branch, lowa. The visitor
center is on Parkside Drive and Main
Street 0.8 km (1/2 mi) from Exit 254 of
Interstate 80. The park'’s historic buildings
are open daily 8 a.m. to 5 p.m., except
Thanksgiving Day, Christmas, and New
Year’s Day. There is no admission fee for
the historic buildings. The site is admin-
istered by the National Park Service, U.S.
Department of the Interior. A superintend-
ent, whose address is Box 607, West
Branch, |A 52358, is in immediate charge.

The white building with
the steeple in this 1880
photograph is the
Methodist-Episcopal
Church. To this side of
the church, in the
circle, is the roof of
Jesse’s blacksmith
shop and the gable end
of the birthplace
cottage.

The Herbert Hoover Presidential Library-
Museum is administered by the General
Services Administration, National Ar-
chives and Record Service. The Library-
Museum is open daily except Thanksgiv-
ing Day, Christmas, and New Year’'s Day.
Museum hours vary with the season. An
admission fee is charged persons 16 years
of age and older.

GPO: 1980—311-309/20
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Walking Tour

Herbert Hoover’s birthplace was desig-
nated a national historic site on August
12, 1965. The park contains six sites in
three areas that together memorialize his
life and contributions. The portion of West
Branch adjacent to and including the birth-

The small, 14-by-20 foot Birthplace Cot-
tage was built by Jesse Hoover and his
father Eli in 1871. Herbert was born here
in 1874, but by 1879 Jesse had sold both
it and the blacksmith shop and moved his
family into a larger dwelling farther south
on Downey Street. When the cottage was
restored to its 1874 appearance in 1939,
as much as possible of the original furni-
ture belonging to Jesse and Hulda Hoover
was acquired for the house. It still stands
on its original site at the corner of Downey
and Penn Streets.

The Blacksmith Shop, northwest of the
birthplace cottage, is similar to the one
operated by Jesse Hoover from 1871 to
1879. Jesse’s abilities, and the needs of
this farming community, guaranteed that
he had a steadily increasing business. The
shop is equipped with tools of the type
used by Jesse. Demonstrations of black-
smithing are often held here during the
summer months.

place cottage is undergoing restoration.
When complete, it will recall the late 19th-
century Midwestern neighborhood from
which Hoover came. The Library-Museum
represents his years as a public servant.
The Gravesite is the third area.

The Friends Meetinghouse was com-
pleted in 1857. The Friends, or Quakers,
who met in this building held unprogram-
med services of silent meditation. There
was no special preparation or message for
worship, and anyone who felt they had an
insight or a spiritual message could share
this with the rest of the congregation.
During his years in West Branch, Herbert
Hoover worshipped here with his family.
Hulda Hoover often spoke before this
meeting. The building has been moved
about two blocks from its original site.

The Friends who settled West Branch built
this one-story frame Schoolhouse in 1853
at a cost of $800. For several years it was
used by the Friends as a meetinghouse
until the Friends completed their own
place of worship. The school originally
stood on a one-acre lot on the southwest
corner of Downey and Main Streets. It has
been moved several times and was finally
placed here in 1971.

Safety Reminders Always use caution
and good sense during your visit to the
historic site. Don'’t let an accident spoil
your stay. Take care on the historic walk-
ways. Note that the boardwalks are espe-
cially slippery in frost or wet weather.

The Presidential Library-Museum houses
the large collection of papers accumulated
by Hoover during his many years of public
service. It also holds a collection of books
and objects associated with his long, dis-
tinguished career. Many items are on
display in exhibit areas. A 180-seat audi-
torium occupies one wing of the building.
The Library-Museum was built by the
Herbert Hoover Birthplace Foundation
and presented to the Nation on August
10,1964.

After more than 50 years of public service
Herbert Hoover died on October 20, 1964.
Five days later he was buried on this hill-
side Gravesite overlooking his birthplace
in West Branch. A few days later the body
of Mrs. Lou Hoover (who died in New York
in 1944) was reinterred here. Landscaping
provides a circular setting for the flat
white marble gravestones.
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This small 14-by-20 foot
cottage was built by
Jesse Hoover and his
father Eliin 1871. It still
stands on the original
site

The bedroom contains
arope bed with a
feather tick. At night a
trundle bed was pulled
out for the children.

porch.

In cold weather the
living room also served
as a kitchen, with the
stove used for heating
and cooking. In warm
weather the stove was
moved to the summer
kitchen on the back

Hoover’s As you approach Her-
bert Hoover National
Historic Site you see
the town of West
Branch from the same
viewpoint as the pho-
tographer who took the
picture of Downey
Streetin 1880. Many
changes have occurred
in the intervening cen-
tury, but when you

leave the visitor center
vou enter a setting that
recreates the late
19th-century farm com-
munity into which
Hoover was born in
August 1874.

At the time of Hoover's
birth, West Branch was
a growing community
of about 350 persons.

Blacksmith Shop

By 1880 over 500 peo-
ple lived here It was a
town dependent on
farming for its liveli-
hood. Even those who
did not farm supported
farming, like Herbert’s
father who operated a
blacksmith shop then a
farm implement store.
The town had schools,
churches, hotels, gro-

cery stores and meat
markets, a harness
shop, a funeral parlor,
and even a book store.

Today the buildings of
the site help recall that
historic setting. The
birthplace cottage, the
blacksmith shop, the
Friends Meetinghouse,
and the school—all

Schoolhouse

open to the public—
and historiecal resi-

dences that are closed,

are typical of those
found in a midwestern
farm community of the
1870s and 1880s.

From the overlook on
the walkway to the
Gravesite can be seen
the Isaac Miles Farm
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and a restored native
prairie of the tvpa an-
countered by the pio-
neers who settled here.
In Hoover’s youth this
land was all farmed.

Friends Meetinghouse




